
 

 

 
MEETING: STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
  
DATE: Thursday 15th July, 2010 
  
TIME: 10.00 am 
  
VENUE: Town Hall, Southport 
  
 
 Member Substitute 
  

Councillor 
 
Councillor 

 Blackburn 
Brady 
Fairclough 
Hill 
Howe 
Papworth 
 

Tonkiss 
Moncur 
Maher 
D Rimmer 
Fenton 
McIvor 
 

 
 Independent Members: Mr. N. Edwards (Chair), Mr Edward Davies (Vice-

Chair) and Mr. J. Fraser 
 
 Parish Council Member Mrs. B. O'Brien and Mr. D. Warren 
 
 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Steve Pearce  

Head of Committee and Member Services 
 Telephone: 0151 934 2046 / 2068 
 Fax: 0151 934 2034 
 E-mail: steve.pearce@legal.sefton.gov.uk 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

 Members and Officers are requested to give notice of any 
personal or prejudicial interest and the nature of that interest, 
relating to any item on the agenda in accordance with the 
relevant Code of Conduct.  
 

 

3. Minutes 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2010  
 

(Pages 5 - 6) 

4. Standards Committee Annual Report 2009 -10 

 Report of the Interim Head of Corporate Legal Services  
 

(Pages 7 - 16) 

5. Proposed Decentralisation and Localism Bill 

 Report of the Interim Head of Corporate Legal Services  
 

(Pages 17 - 
20) 

6. Case Summaries - Recent Investigations 

 Report of the Interim Head of Corporate Legal Services  
 

(Pages 21 - 
32) 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



THESE MINUTES ARE NOT SUBJECT TO CALL IN. 

 

21 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT 

ON  25 MARCH 2010 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Mr. N. Edwards (in the Chair) 

Councillor Mr. E. Davies (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors Bigley, Brady, M Fearn, Papworth and 
Mr. J. Fraser 
 

 
 
41. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fairclough and Hill 
and Parish Councillors Mrs. O'Brien and Warren. 
 
42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
43. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2010 be confirmed as 
a correct record. 
 
44. CASE SUMMARIES - RECENT INVESTIGATIONS  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Legal Director which 
incorporated copies of three case summaries published by Standards for 
England following recent investigations by Ethical Standards Officers. 
 
RESOLVED:   That 
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) the case summaries be published on the Members' Portal and 

Members of the Council be sent an email link. 
 
45. BIAS AND PREDETERMINATION – REFERRAL FROM     

           MERSEYTRAVEL  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Legal Director which provided 
details of the advice provided by Standards for England to the Merseyside 
Integrated Transport Authority relating to Bias and Predetermination and 
circulated to monitoring officers in Merseyside for information. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



STANDARDS COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 25TH MARCH, 2010 
 

22 

RESOLVED:   That 
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) the advice note be published on the Members' Portal and Members  

of the Council be sent an email link. 
 
46. ANNUAL ASSEMBLY OF STANDARDS COMMITTEES  

 
The Chair reported that the Ninth Annual Assembly of Standards 
Committees would be held in Birmingham on 18 to 19 October 2010. 
 
RESOLVED:   That 
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) the Chief Executive be requested to authorise the attendance of the 

Head of Corporate Legal Services and Monitoring Officer at the 
Annual Assembly. 

 
47. MEMBERS INDUCTION PROGRAMME 2010  

 
The Chair reported that a session on the Members Code of Conduct and 
the Standards regime would be included in the Members' Induction 
Programme for 2010 and that he would be attending the session. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
48. MONITORING OFFICER  

 
The Chair reported that Caroline Elwood, Legal Director and Monitoring 
Officer would be taking early retirement on 31 March 2010. 
 
He also reported that Mr. D. Mackey, Interim Head of Corporate Legal 
Services and Ms. A. Grant, Assistant Director (Democratic Services) had 
been appointed by the Council as the Monitoring Officer and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer respectively. 
 
RESOLVED:   That 
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) the sincere appreciation of the Committee be conveyed to Mrs. 

Elwood, Legal Director for all of the support and guidance she has 
given to the Committee together with best wishes for the future. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 6



 

  

 
 
Meeting:    STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Date of Meeting:    15 July 2010 
 
Title of Report:  Annual Report 2009/10 
 
Report of:  This report contains Yes No 
 
D Mackey 
Interim Head of Corporate Legal 
Services 
  

 
CONFIDENTIAL  
Information/ 

 √ 

Contact Officer:  
(Telephone No.) 0151 934 2032 
  

EXEMPT information by virtue of 
paragraph(s)............of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act, 1972  
(If information is marked exempt, 
the Public Interest Test must be 
applied and favour the exclusion 
of the information from the press 
and public). 

  
 

√ 
 

 Is the decision on this report 
DELEGATED? 

√ 
 

 

 
1.0 Summary 
 
To present the draft version of the annual report of Sefton Council Standards 
Committee 
 
2.0 Recommendation(s) 
 
That the Committee approve the draft version of the annual report of the Standards 
Committee, subject to any amendments / comments they may wish to make. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 

  

Corporate Objective Monitoring 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1. Creating a Learning Community  √  
2. Creating Safe Communities  √  
3. Jobs and Prosperity  √  
4. Improving Health and Well-Being  √  
5. Environmental Sustainability  √  
6. Creating Inclusive Communities  √  
7. Improving the Quality of Council Services 

and Strengthening local Democracy 
√   

8. Children and Young People  √  
 
 
Financial Implications 
 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2006/ 
2007 
£ 

2007/ 
2008 
£ 

2008/ 
2009 
£ 

2009/ 
2010 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital 

Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue 

Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry 

date? Y/N 

When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Departments consulted in the preparation of this Report 
 
 
 
List of background papers relied upon in the preparation of this Report 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 8



 

  

 
3.0 Background 
 
At their meeting on the 28 May 2009 Members resolved that the Legal Director 
produce an annual report on the work of the Committee. The draft annual report for 
2009/10 is now submitted for Members approval, subject to any amendments or 
comments they may wish to make, and, if approved, will then be presented to full 
Council on 2nd September 2010. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 

  

 
THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE FOR 2009/10 

 

 
1.0 Introduction from the Chair 
1.1 On behalf of the Members of the Standards Committee it gives me great 

pleasure to introduce the 2009/10 annual report to the Council.   In doing so I 
feel it appropriate to express my thanks to Members of the Committee, the 
Monitoring Officer and his staff for their support and wise counsel during the 
year. 

 
2.0 Composition and Terms of Reference 
2.1 The Local Government Act 2000 required all Local Authorities to establish a 

Standards Committee tasked with promoting and maintaining high standards 
of conduct among Members and to assist Members to observe the Code of 
Conduct.  Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution sets out the composition role 
and functions of the Committee.   

 
2.2 With effect from May 2009 the Committee has also been responsible for 

dealing with complaints against Elected Members and has the power to 
impose a range of sanctions in respect of those Members who have been 
found to have been in breach of the Members Code of Conduct.   

 
2.3 The Committee is also responsible for issues in relation to the Parish and 

Town Councils within Sefton and accordingly the Standards Committee must 
include representatives from Parish Councillors.  In addition at least a quarter 
of the membership must be Independent Members appointed by the Council 
to serve on the Committee.   

 
2.4 The Local Government Act 2000 was amended in 2008 so as to make it a 

legal requirement that the Committee is chaired by an Independent Member. 
 
 
3.0 Members of the Standards Committee 
3.1 The Standards Committee must be composed of six Councillors, three 

Independent Members and two Parish Council Representatives.  The 
Members of the Standards Committee for 2009/10 were as follows:- 

 
 Sefton Borough Council Representatives – Cllrs Blackburn, Brady 

and Fairclough (Cabinet Member) Cllrs Hill, Howe and Papworth 
 
 Independent Members – Mr N Edwards (Chair), Mr JR Fraser,  

Mr E Davies 
 
  Parish Council Members - Mrs B O’Brien and Mr D Warren 
 
3.2 During 2009/10 the Standards Committee met on the following occasions:- 
 
 28th May 2009 
 9th September 2009 

Agenda Item 4

Page 10



 

  

 17th September 2009 
 19th November 2009 
 15th December 2009 
 28th January 2010 
 25th March 2010 
 
4.0 Local Standards Framework 
4.1 As from May last year the Council’s Standards Committee became 

responsible for dealing with complaints in respect of allegations that there had 
been a breach of the Code of Conduct.  This was previously the responsibility 
of the Standards Board for England who in future will adopt a more strategic 
role responsible for training and guidance and monitoring the outcome of 
complaints and investigations undertaken by Local Authorities.   

 
4.2 Each complaint received by the Standards Committee must be assessed to 

see whether it falls within the Committee’s jurisdiction.  Three Sub-
Committees have been established for dealing with the potential stages 
involved in a complaint as follows:- 

 
4.2.1 Initial Assessment Sub-Committee – receives and determines 

whether to refer for investigation or other appropriate action any written 
complaint. 

 
4.2.2 Review Sub-Committee – further reviews and re-considers the 

decision of the Initial Assessment Committee upon appeal. 
 

4.2.3 Hearings Sub-Committee – hears the outcome of any investigation 
into an alleged breach of the Code and determines any appropriate 
sanction. 

 
4.3 At their meeting on the 14 July 2008 the Standards Committee agreed to 

adopt and publicise the assessment criteria for the local assessment of 
complaints.  The adopted criteria are set out in full at Annex A. 

 
4.4 In the year 2009/10, the Initial Assessment Sub-Committee has met on one 

occasion to consider a local complaint.  The Hearing considered a complaint 
and determined as follows:- 

 
NO. BREACH DECISIONS 

   
SAC 
11 

§ Failing to treat others with respect 
§ Bringing their office or Authority into 

disrepute (Allegations against Parish 
Councillors) 

No action 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



 

  

5.0 Independent Members 
Two Independent Members were appointed to the Sub-Committee following a 
recruitment and selection process.  The Council subsequently agreed the 
recommendation that Mr E Davies, from Formby, and Mr JR Fraser, from Ainsdale, 
be appointed as Independent Members of the Standards Committee for a three year 
term of office until May 2011.  The Independent Members Chair any meetings of the 
Sub-Committee. 
 
 
6.0 Training  
6.1 Training and development is an important function of the Standards 

Committee. During 2009/10 training and development opportunities were 
provided on the following dates:- 

 
 6.1.1     New Members Induction – 13th May 2010, 14th May 2010, 25th 

may 2010 and 3rd June 2010 
 
 
7.0 Summary 
7.1 The Standards Committee is a non-political body whose Members are 

required to act in an impartial manner, using their experience and sound 
judgement to determine complaints laid against Elected Members.  The 
Committee is not a battle-ground for party political disputes. 

 
7.2 This annual report was approved by the Standards Committee at its meeting 

on the 15 July 2010 and is recommended to the Council.   
 
 
Neil Edwards 
Independent Chair 
Standards Committee 
July 2010 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 12



Agenda Item 4

Page 13



Agenda Item 4

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Meeting:   Standards Committee  
 
Date of Meeting:    15th July 2010 
 
Title of Report:  Proposed Decentralisation & Localism Bill 
 
 
Report of:  This report contains Yes No 
Mr D Mackey 
Interim Head of Corporate Legal 
Section 
 

 
CONFIDENTIAL  
Information/ 

 √ 

Contact Officer:  
(Telephone No.) 0151 934 2032 
  

EXEMPT information by virtue of 
paragraph(s)............of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act, 1972  
(If information is marked exempt, 
the Public Interest Test must be 
applied and favour the exclusion 
of the information from the press 
and public). 

  
 

√ 
 

 Is the decision on this report 
DELEGATED? 

  

 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
To advise Members on the Governments planned Decentralisation and Localism Bill 
and its effect on Standards for England. 
 
2.0 Recommendation(s) 
 
That Members note the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



 

 

Corporate Objective Monitoring 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1. Creating a Learning Community  √  
2. Creating Safe Communities  √  
3. Jobs and Prosperity  √  
4. Improving Health and Well-Being  √  
5. Environmental Sustainability  √  
6. Creating Inclusive Communities  √  
7. Improving the Quality of Council Services 

and Strengthening local Democracy 
√   

8. Children and Young People  √  
 
Financial Implications 
 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2006/ 
2007 
£ 

2007/ 
2008 
£ 

2008/ 
2009 
£ 

2009/ 
2010 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital 

Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue 

Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry 

date? Y/N 

When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Departments consulted in the preparation of this Report 
 
Not applicable 
 
 
List of background papers relied upon in the preparation of this Report 
 
www.standardsforengland.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 5

Page 18



 

 

 
 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 As part of the Queen’s Speech, the Government announced that a 

Decentralisation and Localism Bill will be introduced, expected to be 
published in the Autumn.  Part of this Bill includes the abolition of the 
Standards Board regime but no further details are available at this time. 

 
3.2 Bob Chilton, Chair and Glenys Stacey, Chief Executive of Standards for 

England have recently responded as follows:- 
 
 “We are very disappointed at the Government’s decision to abolish the 

Local Government Standards Regime. 
 
 Since 2007, Standards for England has dealt only with those matters 

which Local Authorities could not deal with themselves.  Our recent 
review of this devolved local framework found that it is delivering 
increased confidence in the accountability of local politicians, improved 
Member behaviour and contributing to better governance. 

 
 We do not have clear details as yet of what is proposed for the future, 

but for now the local Standards framework remains pending legislative 
change.  Our priorities are to fulfil our statutory duties, to support Local 
Authorities in maintaining high standards and to assist the Government 
in developing and implementing any new arrangements”. 

 
3.3 No further details of the Government’s proposals are available at the time of 

writing this report but a verbal update will be given at the meeting. 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

Meeting:   STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting:   15TH JULY 2010 
 

Title of Report:            CASE SUMMARIES – RECENT INVESTIGATIONS 
 
 
Report of:  This report contains Yes No 
 
Dave Mackey, 
Interim Head of Corporate 
Legal Services 
  

 

CONFIDENTIAL  
Information/ 

 √ 

Contact Officer:  
(Telephone No.)  
0151 934 2032 
  

EXEMPT information by virtue of 
paragraph(s)............of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A to the Local 
Government Act, 1972  
(If information is marked exempt, the 
Public Interest Test must be applied and 
favour the exclusion of the information 
from the press and public). 

  
 
√ 
 

 Is the decision on this report 
DELEGATED? 

  

1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
To update Members on the outcome of two recent investigations by Standards for 
England. 
 
 
2.0 Recommendation(s) 
 
That Members note the case summaries and determine whether there is benefit in 
circulating the summaries to other Council Members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Corporate Objective Monitoring 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 21



 2 

Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1. Creating a Learning Community  √  
2. Creating Safe Communities  √  
3. Jobs and Prosperity  √  
4. Improving Health and Well-Being  √  
5. Environmental Sustainability  √  
6. Creating Inclusive Communities  √  
7. Improving the Quality of Council Services 

and Strengthening local Democracy 
√   

8. Children and Young People  √  
 
 
Financial Implications 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009/ 

2010 

£ 

2010/ 

2011 

£ 

2011/ 

2012 

£ 

2012/ 

2013 

£ 

Gross Increase in Capital 

Expenditure 

- - - - 

Funded by: - - - - 

Sefton Capital Resources  - - - - 

Specific Capital Resources - - - - 

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS - - - - 

Gross Increase in Revenue 

Expenditure 

- - - - 

Funded by: - - - - 

Sefton funded Resources  - - - - 

Funded from External Resources - - - - 

Does the External Funding have an expiry 

date? Y/N N 

When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
 
 
Departments consulted in the preparation of this Report 
 
Not applicable 
 
 
List of background papers relied upon in the preparation of this Report 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 22



 3 

www.standardsforengland.gov.uk/caseinformation - recent summaries 
 
 
3.0 Background 

 
3.1 The Standards Board has recently published two case summaries relating to 

recent investigations.  Copies of the case summaries are attached at 
Appendix 1 as follows:- 

 
(i) Fenland District Council - Complaint that the Member disclosed confidential 

information.  The Ethical Standards Officer found that the Member did not 
breach the Code of Conduct. 

 
(ii) South Tyneside Council - Complaint that the Member had failed to show 

respect to another Member and that he brought his office and/or his authority 
into disrepute.  The Ethical Standards Officer found that the Member did not 
breach the Code of Conduct. 

 
(iii) Cornwall Council - Complaint that the Member made an abusive and 

disreputable personal attack on individual members of the public and on local 
people generally.  The Ethical Standards Officer (ESO) found that the 
Member’s conduct was not on balance capable of damaging the reputation of 
the office of Councillor or of his Authority and he did not, therefore, fail to 
comply with paragraph 5 of the Code of Conduct.  In respect of an allegation 
of disrespect, the ESO found that the Member had failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct, but in the circumstances of the case, no further action 
needed to be taken. 

 
3.2 Members are asked to note the details of the case summaries and determine 

whether it would be appropriate to circulate any of the case summaries to 
other Members of the Council or Parish Councillors. 

 
  
  

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Page 25



Agenda Item 6

Page 26



Agenda Item 6

Page 27



Agenda Item 6

Page 28



Agenda Item 6

Page 29



Agenda Item 6

Page 30



Agenda Item 6

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Standards Committee Annual Report 2009 -10
	Standards Annual Report Annex

	5 Proposed Decentralisation and Localism Bill
	6 Case Summaries - Recent Investigations
	Case Summaries Appendix


